
Minutes 

Bristol Select Board 

November 2, 2017 

 

Present:  Select Board members: Paul Manganiello, JP Morrison, Rick Alpers, Les Dion, Don Milbrand, 

and Town Administrator Nik Coates. 

Absent:   

Others Present:  Fire Chief Ben LaRoche and members of the public. 

Mr. Milbrand made a motion to go into non-public session at 5:30PM under RSA 91-A:3 II(a), (b),(c), and 

(e) seconded by Mr. Manganiello.  A roll call vote was held. The Board voted 5-0 in favor of the motion.  

Mr. Milbrand made a motion to come out of non-public at 6:00PM, seconded by Mr. Manganiello. A roll 

call vote was held. The Board voted 5-0 in favor of the motion.  

The public meeting was opened at 6:00PM. 

Minutes:  

Ms. Dion made a motion to approve the public and non-public minutes from October 19, 2017 seconded 

by Mr. Milbrand. The Board voted 4-0-1 in favor of the motion.   Mr. Manganiello made a motion to seal 

the previous non-public minutes, seconded by Mr. Milbrand.  The Board voted 5-0 in favor of the 

motion.   

Consent Agenda:  Mr. Manganiello made a motion to approve the consent agenda dated November 2, 

2017, to include the items named therein, seconded by Ms. Dion.  The Board voted 5-0 in favor of the 

motion to approve the consent agenda.   

Field Hockey State Champions:  The Board congratulated the Newfound Field Hockey team for their 

hard work this season.  Mr. Alpers read a proclamation honoring the team and individual certificates 

were presented to the players. 

Household Hazardous Waste Day:  Tom Keegan presented an overview of the 2017 Household 

Hazardous Waste day.  90 households participated which is down from 108 last year. Mr. Keegan 

thanked the many volunteers that helped that day.  Boy Scout troop 50 was recognized for their help 

that day.  Next year’s cost is up 4% to $3,984.  The traffic pattern for next year will be worked on. The 

date for the next HHW day is August 4, 2018. 

Fire Department Updates:  Chief LaRoche presented the Board with the following updates. 

Chief LaRoche met with the forest ranger regarding the forestry trailer.  The Board signed a form stating 

that the town is still in possession of the trailer and that it is in good shape. 



The reappointment of three deputy fire wardens for 2018 was signed by the Board. 

The process is just about completed for turning the F550 truck from the Highway Department into the 

forestry vehicle.  The tank has cracked on the vehicle and repairs will be looked into.  The town still owns 

the 1967 Jeep and Chief LaRoche would like to surplus the vehicle through a sealed bid process.  The 

Board is in consensus to put the Jeep out to a sealed bid. 

Deputy Fire Chief Position:  Chief LaRoche presented a slide show outlining the request for this new full 

time position.  There is a need to increase the number of call personnel and recruitment is an active 

process that take a lot of time.  The current staffing numbers, changes in calls for services volume, and 

the duties of the Fire Chief were reviewed.  The job description of the new deputy position was 

discussed. 

Chief LaRoche asked the Board for their support of the new position.  Chief LaRoche would like to seek 

approval of the Deputy Fire Chief position at the 2018 Town Meeting and set July 1, 2018 as a start date. 

The financial impact of the new positon was reviewed. There is an estimated increase of $46000 in 2018 

over the 2017 budget and a $52000 increase in 2019 over the 2018 budget.  Mr. Manganiello asked 

Chief LaRoche to clarify what the increased costs represent.  Chief LaRoche replied that the increased 

costs are salary, benefits, and retirement.  Mr. Manganiello asked if some percentage of the salary can 

go into the ambulance billing contract.  Chief LaRoche replied that discussion can be had 

Mr. Alpers asked how many second calls the department receives per week.  Chief LaRoche replied that 

the department receives just under  per week. 

Mr. Alpers commented that the Board will discuss this again at the November 16th meeting. Mr. Alpers 

requested the following information from Chief LaRoche:  a break out of the public education and 

prevention numbers, a firm number of second calls and the time of day they occur, a break out of the 

assignments of the three captains, provide the job descriptions, and to spell out the financial impact in 

more detail. 

ERZ:  Mr. Alpers informed the Board that the ERZ (Economic Revitalization Zone) needs to be re-

adopted.  Local businesses in ERZs get some tax credits.  The Planning office asked to move forward with 

the ERZ2 application.  Mr. Coates commented that the ERZ1 adds 5 additional lots for an industrial zone. 

The ERZ2 adds two additional lots and make the downtown a full commercial zone and adds the corridor 

to the lake and Hillside Ave to Chandler St.  The Board was in consensus to move forward with the ERZ2 

application. 

Police Chief Recruitment:  Mr. Alpers informed the Board that this will be a 2 round hiring process like 

the Fire Chief hiring process was.  The Board will review the documents over the next few days and then 

the ad will be posted.  The start date will be in January or February 2018. 

TAN:  Mr. Alpers informed the Board that a TAN is being drafted and will be put out to bid. 

Town Administrators Report:   



Select Board Items:   

Mr. Morrison asked for an update on the ice rink boards.  Mr. Coates commented that the surplus 

process could be used to sell the boards.  Mr. Alpers commented that the town also purchased a snow 

blower and a $1500 liner for the rink.  Mr. Coates will ask Becca is she is still interested in purchasing the 

boards. 

Mr. Morrison asked for updated information regarding discounts.  Mr. Coates replied that the Finance 

Officer will get discount information to the Board. 

Mr. Morrison asked about the health insurance rates. Mr. Coates replied that the town is seeing a 20% 

increase in health insurance rates and that there are not a lot of options regarding health insurance.  

The town cannot go back to HealthTrust until next year and School Care is not interested in the town. 

Mr. Alpers asked if there were no other options from Interlocal.  Mr. Coates replied that there are higher 

deductible plans but there is minimal savings.  Mr. Alpers asked that the Finance Officer call again and 

see if the percentage increase can be lessened and to look at the marketplace again. 

Ms. Dion commented that an apology letter was received from a child for breaking the sign on the 

bench at Kelley Park.  The child sent $6 to help pay for the repairs. 

Ms. Dion thanked town staff and volunteers for the Halloween event in town. 

Mr. Manganiello commented that the Planning Board wants to meet with the Kelley Park Commission 

regarding the scoreboards.  Ms. Dion commented that there is a question regarding the sign permit.  Mr. 

Manganiello commented that there are structure and height restrictions that will be discussed. Mr. 

Alpers commented that as a municipality the town does not have to follow that but will talk to the 

Planning Board as a courtesy.  

Public Comment:   

Barbara Greenwood commented that the Middle School band were excellent leading the Halloween 

parade. Janet Cavanagh commented that she send compliments to the Police Department and the Town 

Administrator for the Facebook posts as these let the community know what is going on. 

Mr. Milbrand made a motion to enter into non-public session at 7:45PM under RSA 91-A:3 II(a), (b),(c), 

and (e) seconded by Mr. Manganiello.  A roll call vote was held. The Board voted 5-0 in favor of the 

motion. Mr. Milbrand made a motion to come out of non-public, seconded by Mr. Manganiello. A roll 

call vote was held. The Board voted 5-0 in favor of the motion.  

Mr. Milbrand made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Mr. Manganiello.  The Board voted 5-0 in favor of 

the motion. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Wendy Costigan 



 

 

 

 

 


